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5385 N. Nob Hill Road, Sunrise, Florida 33351 Phone: 954-721-8681 - Fax: 954-721-9202

May 19, 2020

Board of Supervisors Coral Keys Homes
Community Development District

Dear Board Members:
A communications media technology meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Keys Homes Community Development District will be held on May 26, 2020 at 11:15 a.m. In accordance with Office of the Governor, Executive Orders authorizing the use of communications media technology, the Board of Supervisors and members of the public may attend and participate in the meeting utilizing the following call-in information: from your computer, tablet or smartphone go to https://global.gotomeeting.comjo/in/64234649     3 or by dialing (646)749-3122 and Access Code : 642346493#.

	Oath of Office for Mr. Ray Demby


	Roll Call


	Approval of the Minutes of the November 19, 2019 Meeting


	Consideration of Resolution #2020-04 Approving the Proposed Fiscal Year 2021 Budget and Setting the Public Hearing


	Consideration/ Ratification of Agreement for Access to Certain Exempt Information Maintained by Miami- Dade County Property Appraiser


	Discussion of Issuance of Bonds


	Discussion of District's Operation and Maintenance (obligations and time table)


	Discussion of Procedures for the Landowners Election - November 24, 2020


	Staff Reports

A	Attorney

	Engineer


	Manager - Number of Registered Voters in the District - 75


	Financial Reports

A	Approval of Check Run Summary

B. Approval of Combined Balance Sheet

	Supervisors Requests and Audience Comments


	Adjournment


Meetings are open to the public and may be continued to a time, date and place certain. For more information regarding this COD please visit the website: http://www.coralkeyshomescd d.com
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MINUTES OF MEETING CORAL KEYS HOMES
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Coral Keys Homes Community Development District was held Tuesday, November 19, 2019 at 10:30 a.m. at 15500 New Barn Road, Suite 104, Miami Lakes, Florida.

Present and constituting a quorum were:


Frank Covelli Karl Albertson Logan Bell Mary Moulton
 
Chairman Vice Chairman
Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary


Also present were:
Luis Hernandez Ginger Wald Juan Alvarez Niyala Harrison
 

District Manager District Counsel District Engineer
Bond Counsel (by phone)




FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS	Oath of Office for Mr. Ray Demby
Mr. Hernandez: I just want to indicate for the record that Mr. Ray Demby is not present today for his oath of office, so we will put this back on the agenda for the next meeting.

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS	Roll Call
Mr. Hernandez called the meeting to order and called the roll.

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS	Organizational Matters
	Acceptance of Resignation Letter from Mr. Nicolas Aparicio

Mr. Hernandez: The third item on the agenda we have acceptance of the resignation letter from Mr. Nicolas Aparicio. So, at this point it would be necessary to have a motion accepting his resignation from the nomination that was being made at that time.
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On MOTION by Mr. Bell seconded by Mr. Covelli with all in favor, accepting the resignation of Mr. Nicolas Aparicio was approved.
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	Consideration of Appointment of Supervisor to Unexpired Term of Office (Seat #1 - 11/2020)
	Oath of Office for Newly Appointed Supervisor

Mr. Hernandez: Moving on, that means that seat #1 and the seat that Nicolas Aparicio was appointed to is vacant, does the Board have anyone they would like to appoint at this time for that vacant seat?
Mr. Covelli: Yes, Mary Moulton.
Mr. Hernandez: So, I have a nomination with a motion to appoint Mary Moulton to that seat, do I have anyone seconding that motion?
On MOTION by Mr. Covelli seconded by Mr. Albertson with all in favor, appointing Mary Moulton to fill the unexpired term of office, seat #1 expiring November, 2020 was approved.


Mr. Hernandez: So, the oath will be administered. I just need  you to  state  your name after I say the word "I", and I will read the oath, and at the end express verbally that you agree with the statement that I have passed on to you, so "I".
Ms. Moulton: "Mary Moulton."
Mr. Hernandez: A resident of the State of Florida and citizen of the United States of America, being a Supervisor of the Coral Keys Homes Community Development District and recipient of public funds on behalf of the District, do hereby solemnly swear or affirm that I will support the Constitution of the United States and of the State of Florida, and will faithfully, honestly, and impartially discharge the duties devolving upon me in the office of Supervisor of the Coral Keys Homes Community Development District, Miami-Dade County, Florida.
Ms. Moulton: "I do."
Mr. Hernandez: Thank you very much. If you would just please fill this in up to the date, I will greatly appreciate it. After the meeting I will be more than happy to go through all the documents and explain any questions you may have at that time. My office has also prepared a list of close by Supervisor of Elections offices, and if the one where you reside is not in here just let me know, and I will find the specific address for you to file that form.

Moving on with the documents, the last document that I need to give to you is the Florida Commission on Ethics guide to the Sunshine laws and code of ethics. These are the rules that apply to all the Supervisors and the rule of thumb is that you're prevented from discussing with the Supervisors matters that affect or could potentially affect the District outside of a public meeting. With that being said, welcome aboard.
Ms. Moulton: Ok, thank you.


	Election of Officers

Mr. Hernandez: So, now that we have undertaken that portion, it is necessary for the Board to revise the slate of officers. Prior to the new election, Frank Covelli was acting as chairman, Karl Albertson was acting as vice chairman, Logan Bell was assistant secretary and then we have Ray Demby also as an assistant secretary, and now Mary Moulton, you can either appoint her to the assistant secretary vacant seat, or you can make any rearrangements to the entire slate of officers. I just need for the Board to define what it is that you want to do.
Mr. Covelli: Do you just want to be added as an assistant secretary? Ms. Moulton: That's perfect.
Mr. Covelli: I nominate Mary as an assistant secretary.
Mr. Hernandez: Perfect, so it will be the same slate and she will just be appointed as an assistant secretary. With that being said, I just need a motion for that matter to elect the slate of officers I just read, indicating that Mary will be an assistant secretary.
On MOTION by Mr. Bell seconded by Mr. Covelli with all in favor, Election of Officers, keeping the existing slate of officers and adding Mary Moulton as an assistant secretary was approved.



FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Approval  of  the  Minutes  of  the
August  20, 2019 and August 29,
2019 Meetings
Mr. Hernandez: The next action that we have is approval of the minutes of the August 20, 2019 and August 29, 2019 Meetings, a copy of those were included in the agenda and electronic copies were provided to the Supervisors. This would be the time to make any changes, corrections, additions or deletions. If there is none, a motion to approve would be in order.
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On MOTION by Mr. Bell seconded by Mr. Albertson with all in favor, the Minutes of the August 20, 2019 and August 29, 2019 Meetings were approved.
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Mr. Hernandez: Before we move on to the public hearing I just need to present to the Board a resolution that was not fully presented, but it's resolution #2019-09 and it's a resolution that needs to be ratified. What this resolution does is it takes resolution #2019- 08 that was originally accepted and approved to have a public hearing on October 20, 2019 and resolution #2019-09 has changed it and extended that day to be November 19, 2019. The District has fulfilled already all the requirements to have the public hearing on November 19, 2019 at 10:30 a.m. but by ratifying this resolution the Board will be allowing the District to continue with the process we're going to start.
On MOTION by Mr. Bell seconded by Mr. Covelli with all in favor, ratifying Resolution #2019-09 was approved.



FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Public Hearing to Consider the
Imposition	of	Special Assessments
	Motion to Open the Public Hearing

Mr. Hernandez: Moving on, the next action we have is a public hearing to consider the imposition of Special Assessments. The first action that I need from the Board is a motion to open the public hearing.
On MOTION by Mr. Albertson seconded by Mr. Bell with all in favor, opening the Public Hearing was approved.


	Supplemental Engineers Report

Mr. Hernandez: The first item that needs to be presented is the supplemental engineers report, and you will find that in section 5B. Juan, if you would just allow us to understand your report I would greatly appreciate it.
Mr. Alvarez: Sure. This report really was approved by the Board on August 29, 2019 and after that I received some comments from bond counsel asking me to clarify better what it is that the COD is going to acquire in terms of land and onsite roads and so on. So, I added two exhibits, one is exhibit 5 that shows the two tracts that the COD will

be acquiring, and these are both platted tracts already. Tract A is the lake and that is intended to be purchased by the District. The estimated costs of infrastructure includes a little bit less than $1.2 million which is estimated by us based on the purchase price of the land from the developer, and that is going to have to be confirmed I guess with an appraiser, but it is a platted tract of land. The other tract of land that the COD is going to acquire but not pay for, the developer will grant tract B which is shown in yellow in exhibit B with the exception of the private parking spaces, which are going to have to be defined. Mr. Albertson: Ok, so it's more of, this is what the District is going to acquire right?
Mr. Alvarez: Yes, that is the roads, but the COD is going to also acquire the swales.
Mr. Albertson: But what about, this is a tot lot, this is the rock area, I would think we would keep this with the HOA?
Mr. Bell: Well we're talking about putting it with the COD for insurance purposes. Mr. Albertson: And I'm just trying to think from a logistic standpoint if we, say in
March we're going to buy the next set of lots, that's if they're in compliance,  open in April,  so by April I'd have to have a budget that reflects  the operating  cost of the amenity,  either in the COD budget or in the HOA budget, so is that even possible for the COD?
Ms. Wald: Yes, and we can always do a maintenance agreement with the HOA and the HOA can refund it, if the COD doesn't have the funds, but the COD could still own it, and that can always revert back to the COD without a maintenance agreement, so that's an option.
Mr. Albertson: Ok. Then if the COD for some reason, it extinguished at the end of its 30 years, it has to deed it back to the HOA?
Ms. Wald: No, it actually goes to another governmental entity, it can go back to the city or the county. Now the city or the county can go ahead and deed it over simultaneously to the HOA if they chose to do so, which is what I've had happen in dissolutions of other CDDs because most governmental entities don't want that infrastructure.
Mr. Albertson: Then the Board at that time would have to vote to dissolve itself. Ms. Wald: Correct.
Mr. Hernandez: Sure.
Ms. Wald: Then the other thing is, if this is not going to be part of what we're dealing with right here with the bonds, because it's not going to be a purchase, then it actually needs a decision, it doesn't have to be made today either.
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Mr. Alvarez: In terms of land no, but infrastructure is located in yellow. Ms. Wald: Right.
Mr. Albertson: So, can I see your cost breakdown? Mr. Alvarez: Yes, sure.
Mr. Albertson: So, we have roadway improvements, you don't have costs in here for acquisition of the amenities.
Mr. Alvarez: Not for the yellow area, or amenities.
Mr. Albertson: So, the yellow is going to be tracts owned by the District, or what easements over the yellow?
Mr. Alvarez: Right now it's described as the COD owing the yellow tract, less what's accepted, well we have to accept the parking, but if you want to accept other areas, those would have to be described.
Mr. Albertson: Right, so the parking should apply to the HOA because we've gone through it ad nauseam of labeling every spot in creating which unit gets each thing, so I think the parking spaces absolutely have to stay with the HOA, and then the HOA can have some type of agreement with the COD. If down the line in 15 or 20 years everything needs to be repaved then they can kind of contract it as one and have some type of reimbursement I assume.
Ms. Wald: The COD will not be able to pave over the parking spaces,  the COD  would only be able to pave over or re-mill the public roads if the COD owns them.
Mr. Hernandez: What can be done is coordinate so that the two entities do it at the same time. They could use the same vendor, the HOA pays for their portion, the COD pays their portion.
Mr. Albertson: Ok, sure.
Ms. Wald: You could do a tract party agreement, there's lots of options.
Mr. Albertson: So, do you recall what the estimate was, I think it was like $4 million, wasn't it?
Mr. Bell: A little bit less than that, I think.
Mr. Albertson: So, we're at $5.6 million with just roadway, stormwater management, water system and sanitary sewer and this stormwater management and drainage, does that include the acquisition costs?
Mr. Alvarez: It includes the lake.
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Mr. Albertson: Ok, so we really wouldn't need the District to acquire it, we may need them at some point to assume maintenance of it.
Ms. Wald: The maintenance of what?
Mr. Albertson: The rec building, operation and maintenance.
Ms. Wald: How are we doing operation and maintenance if we're not going to own
it?
Mr. Albertson: Can we give it to the District at some point in time free? Ms. Wald: Yes, of course.
Mr. Albertson: And not have to address that in here. Ms. Wald: Correct.
Mr. Albertson: I'm just afraid that we get the building built and somebody saying
they need to start maintaining and operating it and it may not have funds in a budget for the COD, and again we're not getting reimbursed.
Mr. Hernandez: And this one, just for you to be comfortable, what we do is we enter into a developer agreement for funding, so we have a portion that was being levied, and if there is any excess we have an agreement with the developer to fund that. So, if we define that certain funds are needed for that, it's just a matter of making arrangements with the developer.
Mr. Albertson: I think right now everything is in our HOA, I've got it and it can't be changed was them owning it and operating it, but we won't record the declaration until April. So, if we don't include it as an acquisition, something that the District is buying from the developer and then we can still donate it to the District and the District can take over.
Ms. Wald: You can still donate it, you just don't give it to the District, correct. Mr. Albertson: Does that sound good?
Mr. Bell: Yes.
Ms. Wald: You have that flexibility. Mr. Albertson: Ok.
Ms. Wald: It's not going to affect this because we're not going to use any bond funds to pay for it.
Mr. Albertson:  Ok, and then we'll just have to clarify like right here, I'm pretty sure
our HOA was contemplating they would be doing the landscaping and maintenance of this decorative wall and columns and landscaping, is that something the District can maintain?
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Ms. Wald: Sure, this is abutting a public right-of-way, so we're fine, they all are, so that can be District owned and maintained as well.
Mr. Albertson: And they can, if it wanted to maintain it, do an agreement with the
HOA.
Ms. Wald: Correct for the HOA to maintain it, that's always an option as well. Mr. Hernandez: That's correct.
Mr. Albertson: Ok. So then at some point we probably need to maybe get you on
the phone with Sandra at Shutts just so you guys can figure out how to proceed.
Ms. Wald: Yes, we'll need to see the declaration. Mr. Albertson: Yes, ok.
Ms. Wald: Ok, that's fine.
Mr. Hernandez: Back to you Juan.
Mr. Alvarez: Alright, ok so we'll make that adjustment to the engineer's report and I'll change the date and say that it's been accepted by the Board if it is, and send it to you. Mr. Hernandez: So, the revised part is going to have today's date, November 19,
2019, so it would be appropriate at this time to accept the supplemental engineers report in final substantial form dated November 19, 2019 as it has been discussed and explained. Mr. Albertson: Before I make the motion, this one is for not so much because it is somewhat of a legal document, but not as much as the other ones are, could we add to the motion that any changes from developer's counsel to any of these documents that are acceptable to the COD engineer and the COD attorney can be accepted without us having
to re-meet again and re-vote on them.
Mr. Hernandez: That's the reason that we use the words "substantial form", as long as what has been said is being kept, you will be good to move forward.
Mr. Albertson: Ok.
Mr. Hernandez: Typically, and normally having the portion that needs to be maintained or not, or whether it was going to be HOA is non-material for what is taking place. What becomes to be material is adding another lake that would be material to this document.
Mr. Albertson: Ok, got it.
Ms. Wald: Because after we're done with this, if we decide to change something, where it's either being added to the COD like we were discussing, as long as we're dealing

with the bond funds and moving forward in that aspect, and it's a donation from the developer, that's really not a problem.
Mr. Albertson: Ok, and I was asking more, not so much this document but like the next ones we get to, like if our outside counsel, we use this supplement assessment methodology and had some tweaks to some language.
Ms. Wald: Well, it depends on what the tweaks are, if it's substantial, we have to
come.
Mr. Albertson: Well, it's tomato, tomato, just legal words.
Ms. Wald: If it's a minor Scrivener's errors, I'd like it to be phrased this way, then
it's fine.
Mr. Albertson: Ok.
Mr. Hernandez: But it's also important for you to be aware of that document, the engineers report and the methodology report can be supplemented. So, if there are any changes that now instead of townhomes, they market for apartments, and the part I'm just trying to tell you is that it's material, but we can always come and supplement it as to what has already been presented. With that being said, we're back to the consideration.
On MOTION by Mr. Albertson seconded by Mr. Covelli with all in favor, accepting the Supplemental Engineers Report in substantially final form was approved.



	Supplemental Assessment Methodology

Mr. Hernandez: With that being said, we can move on to the supplement assessment methodology. Once again, it's just a supplemental and what this document does is and it will probably be the easiest way for me to explain it is, and you will find it behind tab C is through the tables. The simplest way to explain this is in table 1, what we see is what the development plan currently is. It's being estimated that it will be 323 townhomes, and all of the units are going to be equal, meaning that the equivalent residential units will be exactly the same as the number of units. What we have in table 2 is the estimated costs and it's passing on what the District engineer has just presented and the District just needs to include that as part of the methodology so that we will know what the estimated costs of all the public improvements are. Based on that the District can move on to table 3, and what table 3 does is, we received information from the District underwriter
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that would allow us to understand what would be the bond size. So, in order for the District to pay it off, and at this point it's estimated that what is actually needed to be used for construction funds will be $4.6 million dollars roughly. The District will need to issue a par amount of approximately $5,631,000. This is based on some assumptions, and those assumptions are that the interest rate will be 3.9%, that the bonds are going to be paid on a 30 year period, and the capitalized interest is going to be 1 year, and the maximum annual amount is being determined. At the same time the underwriter's cost will be kept at 2%. With all those matters taking place, once again the District is defining what would be the total cost of the bond issuance. Table 4 presents what will be the allocation of the actual cost that the District will be incurring to be paying for the public improvements and
	the allocation per equivalent residential unit or units as in this report are the same. Table 5 takes the par amount of the $5,631,000 and allocates that per unit, and more importantly it also lets us know how much will be the annual assessment that needs to be levied per unit so that the District will be able to pay back those bonds. Table 6 just presents us the preliminary assessment roll based on the existing folios that the District has and that's the basic allocation. Once again, this is the document being set as of the information the District has today, if any of that were to change as the District reviews that supplemental, we will be able to do that.

Ms. Wald: This has to be updated. Mr. Albertson: Which one?
Ms. Wald: The assessment roll.
Mr. Albertson: Table 6? That's what I was going to ask, now that the plat is recorded. Ms. Wald: Right, it just has to be updated.
Mr. Albertson: Ok. It's not showing on the Property Appraiser's website yet, but I hope they started, they opened it up a week ago, so hopefully maybe by the end of November, or beginning of December it should show the 323 plus the tracts.
Mr. Hernandez: Not a problem, table 6 will be updated if needed as information is available.
Mr. Covelli: And what's in the documents, it maxes out, it was at $1,000 more or
less?
Mr. Albertson: $996.
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Mr. Covelli: Well, that anything over whatever it was that we amended it to, that the developer pays the difference, what was that amount?
Mr. Albertson: That was the par amount, or it was the payoff amount, right?
Ms. Wald:	Yes.	The payoff amount, the one that we're going to be filing, the estimated prepayment have changed, it's $17,434.
Mr. Albertson: Ok.
Mr. Hernandez: And the annual amount for debt? Ms. Wald: The annual amount was $996:
Mr. Hernandez: Perteet.
Mr. Albertson: And we have a large O&M.
Ms. Wald: And we were going to increase the O&M to just $500. Mr. Albertson: Just in case we were doing it.
Mr. Hernandez:	Correct, th	developer is tied up to the obligation if it's less than
that.
Mr. Albertson: Is it the first 3 years from this amended one, or for the first 3 years
of the inception.
Ms. Wald: Actually, that's a good question, because we're doing an amended one, to avoid any type of confusion from the original, what we discussed was going ahead amending it and changing the O&M as well, that will tie in those 3 years as soon as it's recorded to the maximum of the $500. We don't have to, we could say from the original one, the 3 years has expired but they can make the argument that, no you did another one, and you're using that lower amount so to be safe instead of sorry, depending on they're going to interpret it, my interpretation is one way but you never know what somebody else will interpret it.
Mr. Hernandez: Coming back to the issue at hand we have the supplement assessment methodology that has been presented dated August 20, 2019. Unless anyone has any other comments, a motion to accept would be in order. All the indicated updates will be made to the document so that it will reflect everything that was discussed today. Well, it should be updated so let's make it November 19, 2019. So, the motion will read that the supplemental assessment methodology will be dated as of November 19, 2019.

On MOTION by Mr. Albertson seconded by Mr. Bell with all in favor, accepting the Supplemental Assessment Methodology dated November 19, 2019 with the indicated updates was approved.
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	Public Comment and Testimony
	Approving the Project and Declaring that Special Assessments will pay for the Project
	Equalization of Assessments

Mr. Hernandez: Moving on with our agenda, item D we have public comment and testimony. I just need to indicate for the record that we are not skipping over that item, it's just that we don't have any public for anyone to provide any testimony at this point. Moving forward, approving the project and declaring that Special Assessments will pay for the project. Basically, what this action does is that it recognizes the fact that the engineer has estimated and presented it to the Board what are the costs for the public improvements. The methodology report has presented what would be the mechanism so that by allocating debt and levying annually on the described units the District will be able to pay for it. As we move on to the other documents, the assessments that are being presented and the project that's been described will be accepted. With that being said, equalization of assessments, once again, with the resolution the Board will be acting as an equalization Board, and all that means is that the District has seen and contemplated the fairness of the assessments. Since we have the same product type, it's kind of irrelevant for us to do anything different as to what the methodology has already presented. With that being said, we can move on to the resolution.


	Adoption of Resolution #2020-01

Mr. Hernandez: Resolution #2020-01 and the adoption of that resolution will be needed, and Ginger, if you would please let us understand what that document does.
Ms. Wald: Yes, it's basically what you just stated. So, the determination that you're making based upon the acceptance of the engineer's report, the special assessment methodology, and all the resolutions that have previously been done, this is your public hearing for the equalization of those special assessments. No public has appeared, nobody has provided any type of letters, and you can have further discussion if you want to in regards to the amounts that have been estimated as special assessments that will be
coming from bond funds that will be placed on each one of the lots once they're completely platted out. This is that resolution that moves forward and authorizes that to be done and the equalizing of those assessments and those assessments to be placed thereon and allowing the issuance of the special assessments to be place further on the tax roll, this is the resolution in a nutshell.
Mr. Hernandez: Unless anyone has any questions, recommendation to adopt resolution #2020-01 would be in order from staff.
On MOTION by Mr. Albertson seconded by Mr. Bell with all in favor, Resolution #2020-01 was approved.



	Motion to Close the Public Hearing

Mr. Hernandez: Moving on, the next action would be a motion to close the public hearing.
On MOTION by Mr. Albertson seconded by Mr. Bell with all in favor, closing the Public Hearing was approved.


SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS


Mr. Hernandez:	Moving on, we
 Consideration of Resolution #2020-02 Bond Delegation Resolution (if applicable)
have resolution #2020-02 for the Board's
consideration and that's being called the bond delegation resolution. Niyala, if you would please just let us know what the document does, I would greatly appreciate it.
Ms. Harrison: Sure, good morning. Niyala Harrison from the law firm of Greenberg, Traurig as bond counsel. So, what you have before you, resolution #2020-02 is the resolution that authorizes the issuance of the special assessment bond, Series 2020 in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $7 million. So this resolution establishes the parameters for the sale of the bonds, authorizes and approves the negotiated sale of the bonds, approves the forms of the financing documents which those documents are attached as exhibits to the resolution and delegates to the proper officials of the District the authorization to execute the final documents after the sale of the bonds. So, the District will need to reconvene to approve the final document by this resolution all that will be delegated. So, as background, the District did previously validate $12 million of special
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assessment bonds in 2006 and since that time the District did approve a new engineers report and new methodology report which just happened this morning and has also undergone new assessment proceedings. So, this resolution as I said, does have the form of certain of the financing documents attached, the master trust indenture and supplemental trust indenture, those documents do contain the terms of the bonds, the covenants, and it essentially is the agreement between the District and the trustee on behalf of the bondholders. Also attached is the bond purchase agreement, the bond purchase agreement is the agreement between the District and FMS Bonds as the underwriter for the purchase and sale of the bonds. There is a preliminary limited offering memorandum and that document is essentially is the respective offering document that's used to market the bonds to investors. The certificate dealing with the preliminary limited offering memorandum is final and the Securities and Exchange Commission does require that the offering document be final as of the date that it is offered, except for certain permitted omissions and those omissions that are permitted would be specifically related to the numbers and the final pricing of the bonds and so the District will certify that as the preliminary limited offering memorandum, we call it PLOM for short, is deemed final. The last document that's attached is the continuing disclosure agreement and that agreement, the District will provide annual and quarterly reporting information to the market and to investors. So, all of these documents are attached to the resolution in their forms, their substantial and final forms, and they will be finalized at the appropriate time, not before then, but at the appropriate time with the approval of the District, and with the approval of all of the counsels that are involved in this financing. So, going on into the resolution, section 4, the bonds shall be sold pursuant to a negotiated sale instead of the statutorily mandated competitive sale for several of the reasons which are laid out in section 4 of the resolution, and it will be advantageous to go forward with a negotiated sale due to the complexity of the financing structure, you'll have the underwriter involved from the outset of the financing based on the prevailing market conditions for tax exempt bonds in which these bonds will be tax exempt bonds. The bonds do not have a credit rating and they will be sold initially only to accredited investors. Finally, the District will not in any way be adversely affected if the bonds are not sold pursuant to a competitive deal. As far as the parameters of the bond sales are concerned, section 5 does lay out the parameters pursuant to which the bonds will be sold, and if these parameters are not met then the
bonds won't be sold, meaning that the bond purchase  agreement  would  only be executed if these parameters are met. Section 5 does lay out the parameters, the first is that the  bonds will not exceed $7 million dollars, the bonds will be subject  to optional  redemption not later than November 1, 2031. The interest rate on the bonds will not exceed statutorily lending date, or imposed average net interest rates, and that's  based on a computation.  The bonds will have a final maturity that's  not later than November  1, 2051  and  the price at which the bonds are sold will not be less than 98% of the par amount of the bond. So,  with that, I can take any questions if you have them, I would be happy to do so.
Mr. Albertson: I think this is more just in general, so we are going forward to get the declaration amended, that's the first step, and that's in process as soon as we get the revised legal description and everything signed. This will kind of sit here until that is approved right?
Ms. Wald: Yes.
Mr. Albertson: Because the bond, these documents still need to get one final review by the developer's counsel and we have to get approval, well I'm assuming we do get approval.
Mr. Hernandez: Just for you to know this is setting the cap. Mr. Albertson: Ok.
Mr. Hernandez: So, we can't go anything beyond.
Ms. Wald: It's not going to the second step within the next 2 days where we're doing the pre-closing and then the bonds are being sold, you have time.
Mr. Albertson: Ok, perfect.
Mr. Hernandez: But it's setting you up to the highest you can go. Mr. Albertson: Ok, perfect.
Mr. Hernandez: The document that she was describing in case someone wants to see them, I have printed those out. I have only one copy but if anyone wants to read them, I will be more than happy to share that with you. With that being said, unless anyone has any other questions for Niyala, the recommendation at this point would be to adopt resolution #2020-02 which is the bond delegation resolution.

On MOTION by Mr. Albertson seconded by Mr. Bell with all in favor, Resolution #2020-02 the Bond Delegation Resolution was approved.
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SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Consideration	of	Engagement
Letter with Grau & Associates to perform the Audit for Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2019
Mr. Hernandez: Moving on, the next item we have is consideration of the engagement letter with Grau & Associates to perform the audit for fiscal year ending September 30, 2019. The Board has already authorized not only to accept this but also by the audit selection committee to use Grau & Associates. We have received the engagement letter to perform the audit for fiscal year ending September 30, 2019 and I have reviewed it and the amount that is being charged matches with the authorized amount, therefore recommendation is to authorize and approve the engagement letter, and by doing so authorizing the appropriate officials to execute the document.
On MOTION by Mr. Covelli seconded by Mr. Bell with all in favor, accepting the engagement letter with Grau & Associates to perform the audit for Fiscal Year ending September 30, 2019 and authorizing the proper District officials to execute the document was approved.



EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Staff Reports
Mr. Hernandez:	Moving on, staff reports, Ginger?

	Attorney

Ms. Wald: Nothing to report.

	Engineer

Mr. Hernandez: Juan, anything else to say? Mr. Alvarez: Nothing else.

	Manager- Discussion of Meeting Dates, Time and location for Fiscal Year

2020
Mr. Hernandez: Now, on my side one of the items that I have is that we have said to have the meetings in this place, although, it's my understanding that it would be beneficial for Supervisors to have it somewhere else, and probably at another time. So,
the first item that I need to ask is defining time and location. The only part that I didn't present it with is that it's in Crexent Business Center, located at 6625 Miami Lakes Drive in Miami Lakes, Florida 33014, 3rd Floor.
Mr. Albertson: Has this been advertised yet? Ms. Wald: No.
Mr. Hernandez: No.
Mr. Albertson: Summerville and AH are at 10:30 and 10:45, should we maybe not bring this one up a little bit in case we have nothing to talk about at 10:45 to 11:30?
Ms. Wald: Do you want to say 11:15? Mr. Albertson: Yes, I would do that.
Ms. Wald: Ok.
Mr. Albertson: We can start late, we can't start early. Mr. Hernandez: Correct, ok.
Ms. Wald: And then we can take out the November 19th because we've already met
here.
Mr. Hernandez: Yes.
Ms. Wald: And then you're going to leave those dates that we have now.
Mr. Hernandez: Ok, and if you don't mind checking before we approve it, I'd really
appreciate it.
Ms. Wald: It's the third, I don't think they're right, it should be the third Tuesday, so let's check January, you don't have a December meeting, no it should January 21st, so I think these are off, or maybe I'm wrong, hold on, no I'm right.
Mr. Hernandez: I think we have it on the fourth Tuesday. Ms. Wald: No, you're right, I have it wrong, so this is correct.
Mr. Hernandez: The one we presented is on the fourth Tuesday of each month.
Ms. Wald: Yes, we moved it up this month because of the holiday, yes so this is correct.
Mr. Hernandez: Ok, alright. So, with that being said, a motion to accept the provided schedule with the indication that it will be at 11:15 a.m. and by accepting this given schedule you authorize staff to advertise it. So, the next meeting will be January 28, 2020.

On MOTION by Mr. Albertson seconded by Mr. Bell with all in favor, accepting the meeting dates, time and location for Fiscal Year 2020 as the fourth Tuesday of each month at 11:15 a.m. at the Crexent Business Center, 6625 Miami Lakes Drive, Miami Lakes, Florida and authorizing staff to advertise was approved.
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NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Financial Reports
	Approval of Check Run Summary
	Approval of the Combined Balance Sheet

Mr. Hernandez: Moving on, we have financial reports and you will find that in section 9. Tab A contains the check run summary and tab B has the combined balance sheet. Unless anyone has any questions in regard to the financials, a motion to approve would be in order.
On MOTION by Mr. Albertson seconded by Mr. Bell with all in favor, the Check Run Summary and the Combined Balance Sheet were approved.



TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Supervisors	Requests
Audience Comments
 and
Mr. Hernandez: Are there any Supervisors request at this time? Hearing none, I just want to indicate once again for the record that we have no audience.

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Adjournment
Mr. Hernandez: So, with that being said, a motion to adjourn would be in order.


On MOTION by Mr. Albertson seconded by Mr. Bell with all in favor, the Meeting was adjourned.







Secretary/Assistant Secretary	ChairmanNice Chairman
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FY2020
Adopted

Actual
Thru

Projected
Next

Total
Projected

FY2021
Proposed

Description

Budget

4/30/2020

5 Months

9/30/2020

Budget


Revenues











Developer Contributions

$40,000

$0

$40,000

$40,000

$0

Maintenance Assessments

$50,800

$50,859

$0

$50,859

$321,585

Unassigned Fund Balance

$0

$28,694

$0

$28,694

$0

Total Revenues

$90,800

$79,552

$0

$119,552

$321,585


Expenditures











Administrative











Supervisor Fees

$0

$0

$0

$0

$6,000

FICA Payable

$0

$0

$0

$0

$459

Engineering Fees

$2,000

$425

$1,575

$2,000

$6,000

Arbitrage< 1

$0

$0

$0

$0

$1,250

Dissemination< 1

$0

$0

$0

$0

$1,500

Attorney Fees

$7,000

$5,650

$1,350

$7,000

$15,000

Annual Audit

$5,000

$2,600

$0

$2,600

$6,000

Trustee Fees< 1l

$0

$0

$0

$0

$3,500

Management Fees

$24,720

$14,420

$10,300

$24,720

$38,000

Computer Time

$500

$292

$208

$500

$1,000

Website Compliance

$1,000

$583

$417

$1,000

$1,200

Telephone

$0

$0

$0

$0

$50

Postage

$100

$8

$92

$100

$750

Printing & Binding

$341

$253

$88

$341

$500

Insurance

$6,325

$5,894

$0

$5,894

$7,500

Legal Advertising

$900

$1,984

$800

$2,784

$1,200

Other Current Charges

$0

$0

$0

$0

$500

Office Supplies

$0

$0

$0

$0

$150

Dues, Licenses

$175

$175

$0

$175

$175

Contingencies

$40,675

$351

$40,325

$40,675

$0

Operating Reserves

$2,064

$0

$2,064

$2,064

$8,026

Administrative Expenditures

$90,800

$32,634

$57,219

$89,853

$98,760


Field











Landscape Maintenance

$0

$0

$0

$0

$24,000

Plant Replacement

$0

$0

$0

$0

$4,000

Entrance Monuments and Wall

$0

$0

$0

$0

$12,000

General Repairs

$0

$0

$0

$0

$6,000

Janitorial & Porter

$0

$0

$0

$0

$4,000

Lake Maintenance

$0

$0

$0

$0

$7,200

Lake Debris Removal

$0

$0

$0

$0

$1,800

Street Lights

$0

$0

$0

$0

$14,400

Sidewalk Maintenance

$0

$0

$0

$0

$5,000

Mail Kiosk

$0

$0

$0

$0

$2,000

Field Management

$0

$0

$0

$0

$9,000

Field Expenditures

$0

$0

$0

$0

$89,400























)
)



































Net Assessment
$321,585
Plus Collection Fees & Discounts (5%)
$16,926
Gross Assessment
$338,511
# of Units
323
Gross Per Unit Assessment
$995.62




FY2020

Actual

Projected

Total

FY2021
Adopted

Thru

Next

Projected

Proposed
Description	Budget 	4/30/2020	5 Months	9/30/2020		Budget


Clubhouse Operating and Maintenance

Management


$0


$0


$0


$0


$15,625
Employee Medical Insurance
$0
$0
$0
$0
$1,500
Management - Clubhouse Attendance
$0
$0
$0
$0
$30,000
Janitorial & Porter
$0
$0
$0
$0
$12,000
Water
$0
$0
$0
$0
$7,500
Electricity
$0
$0
$0
$0
$18,000
Insurance
$0
$0
$0
$0
$8,000
Pool
$0
$0
$0
$0
$9,000
Pool-Repairs
$0
$0
$0
$0
$3,000
Basket Ball Court
$0
$0
$0
$0
$4,800
Gym Equipment Maintenance
$0
$0
$0
$0
$3,000
Internet
$0
$0
$0
$0
$3,000
Toddler Parks
$0
$0
$0
$0
$1,200
Repairs and Maintenance
$0
$0
$0
$0
$6,000
Picnic Area and Gazeebos
$0
$0
$0
$0
$4,800
Contengencies
$0
$0
$0
$0
$6,000
Clubhouse Expenditures
$0
$0
$0
$0
$133,425
Total Expenditures
$90,800
$32,634
$57,219
$89,853
$321,585






Assigned Fund Balance
$0
$79,552
$0
$119,552
$0

11l  Expenses related to the issuance of Bonds










 	FY 2021	
Coral Keys Homes
Community Development District
General Fund

Page 
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REVENUES:

Maintenance Assessments
The District will levy a non ad-valorem special assessment on all taxable property within the District to fund all of the General Operating Expenditures for the fiscal year.


EXPENDITURES:

Administrative:

Supervisor Fees
The Florida Statutes allows each board member to receive $200 per meeting no to exceed $6,00.00 in one year. The amount for the fiscal year is based upon all five supervisors attending the estimated 6 meetings.

FICA Expense
Represents the Employer's share of Social Security and Medicare taxes withheld from Board of Supervisors checks.

Engineering Fees
Consists of attendance at scheduled meetings of the Board of Supervisor's, offering advise and consultation on all matters related to the works of the District, such as bids for yearly contracts, operating policy, compliance with regulatory permits, etc.

Arbitrage
The District is required to annually have an arbitrage rebate calculation on the District's Special Assessment Bonds.

Dissemination Agent
The District is required by the Security and Exchange Commission to comply with Rule 15(c)(2)-12(b)(5), which relates to additional reporting requirements for un-rated bond issues.

Attorney Fees
Requirements for legal services are estimated and cover such items as attendance at scheduled meetings of the Board of Supervisors, contract preparation and review, etc.

Annual Audit
The District is required to annually conduct an independent examination of its books, records, and accounting procedures. This audit is conducted pursuant to State Law and the rules of the Auditor General.

Trustee Fees
The District Special Assessment Bonds once issued, are held with a Trustee. The amount of the trustee fees is based on the agreement between the trustee and the District.

Management Fees
The District retains the services of a consulting manager, who is responsible for the daily administration of District business, including any and all financial work related to the Operating Funds of the District, and preparation of the minutes of the Board of Supervisor's meetings. In addition, the District Manager prepares the Annual Budget, implements all policies of the Board of Supervisor's, and attends all meetings of the Board of Supervisors.

Computer Time
The District processes all its financial activities, i.e. accounts payable, financial statements, etc. on a main frame computer leased by Governmental Management Services - South Florida, LLC.

Website Compliance
Per Section 189.069 F. S, all District must have a website by October 1, 2015 to provide detailed information on the COD as well as links to useful websites regarding Compliance issues. This website will be maintained by GMS-SF, LLC and updated as required by the Statute.

Telephone
Telephone and fax machine.

Postage
Mailing of agenda packages, overnight deliveries, correspondence, etc.
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Administrative: (continued):

Printing & Binding
Printing and Binding agenda packages for board meetings, printing of computerized checks, stationary, envelopes etc.

Insurance
The District's General Liability & Public Officials Liability Insurance policy is with Florida Insurance Alliance. Who specializes in providing insurance coverage to governmental agencies. The amount is based upon similar Community Development Districts. The limit of liability is set at $1,000,000.

Legal Advertising
The District is required to advertise various notices for monthly Board meetings, public hearings etc in a newspaper of general circulation.

Other Current Charges
Bank charges and any other miscellaneous expenses incurred during the year.

Office Supplies
Miscellaneous office supplies.

Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions
The District is required to pay an annual fee to the Economic Opportunity for $175. This is the only expense under this category for the District.

Contingencies
A contingency for any unanticipated and unscheduled cost to the District.

Operating Reserves
These funds are the first quarter of the following FY of expenses the District will incur before assessments are collected

Field Expenditures:

Landscaping and Fertilization Maintenance:
The district has contracted with Trim All Lawn Service to provide landscaping and fertilization maintenance.

Plants Replacement
The District will go into contract for the replacement of plants needed along the common areas.

Entrance Monuments and Wall
Includes maintenance and repair work needed for the monument signs throughout the common area.

General Repairs & Maintenance
Any miscellaneous repairs not included in another budget line item.

Janitorial & Porter Services
The District will contract with a qualified company to provide janitorial services for the Amenity Center.

Lake Maintenance
Includes monthly cleaning of all District lakes.

Lake Debris Removal
Includes monthly debris removal from all lakes

Streetlights
The District has accounts with City for the street lighting surrounding the District and the entryways.

Sidewalk Maintenance
Represents pressure washing of the District sidewalks.

Mail Kiosk
Includes maintaining the self-service mail kiosk within the district.

Field Management
The supervision and on-site management of Coral Keys Homes COD. The responsibilities include reviewing contracts and other maintenance related items
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Clubhouse Expenditures:

Management
Onsite management fees for the clubhouse.

Employee Medical Insurance
Cost of medical insurance for clubhouse employees.

Management - Clubhouse Attendance
Salary and cost associated with the payroll for the Clubhouse manager.

Janitorial & Porter
The District will contract with a qualified company to provide janitorial services for the Amenity Center.

Water
Water and sewer cost for the Club.

Electricity
Electricity costs for the Club.

Insurance
The cost to the District for its Amenity Center property insurance policy; Florida Insurance Alliance (FIA) specializes in providing insurance coverage to governmental agencies.

Pool
Cost to maintain the pool, does not include repairs.

Pool-Repairs
Cost to make unanticipated repairs to the pool.

Basketball Court
Estimated cost to maintain the basketball courts.

Gym Equipment Maintenance
Estimated cost to maintain the fitness equipment.

Internet
Estimated cost of internet for the Club as needed.

Toddler Parks
Estimated cost to maintain toddler parks within the district.

Repairs and Maintenance
Any miscellaneous repairs not included in another budget line item

Picnic Area and Gazebos
Estimated cost of the repairs for the gazebo and trellis repairs and maintenance.

Contingencies
A contingency for any unanticipated and unscheduled cost to the District


RESOLUTION 2020-04

A RESOLUTION OF THE CORAL KEYS HOMES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING THE DISTRICT'S PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021 AND SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING
THEREON PURSUANT TO FLORIDA LAW

WHEREAS, the District Manager has prepared the proposed budget for the Fiscal Year 2021;and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors approves the proposed budget for purpose of submitting said budget to the local governing authorities not less than 60 days prior to the public hearing date in accordance with Chapter 190.00S(b), Florida Statutes: and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors desires to set the public hearing date;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD  OF SUPERVISORS OF THE CORAL KEYS HOMES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT:

	The proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2021 is hereby appr6ved for the purpose of conducting a public hearing to adopt said budget.
	A public hearing on said approved budget is hereby declared and set for the following  date, hour and place:


Date:	 Hour:	 Place:      	




Notice of public hearing shall be published in accordance with Florida Law.

Adopted this 		day of 	_, 2020


ChairmanNice Chairman



Secretary/Assistant Secretary
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AGREEMENT FOR ACCESS TO CERTAIN EXEMPT INFORMATION MAINTAINED BY THE MIAMI-DADE COUNTY PROPERTY APPRAISER
THIS	AGREEMENT MAINTAINED		BY	THE
 TO	ACCESS MIAMI-DADE
 CERTAIN COUNTY
 EXEMPT	INFORMATION PROPERTY
APPRAISER (AGREEMENT), made and entered into this  	
 day of  	
 , 20_, by
and between the Coral Keys Homes Community Development District (hereinafter referred to as the "CDD") and the MIAMI-DADE COUNTY PROPERTY APPRAISER,
(hereinafter referred as the "Property Appraiser").

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the CDD is an independent special purpose unit of local government that helps plan, finance, construct, operate and maintain infrastructure and services for the benefit of its residents,

WHEREAS, the CDD may finance infrastructure and services by levying ad valorem taxes or non-ad valorem assessments,

WHEREAS, the CDD has requested access to certain records maintained by the Property Appraiser relating to specific property owners, including name, home addresses, telephone numbers, dates of birth, and photographs, which are exempt from public disclosure under section
119.071 of the Florida Statutes ("Exempt Information"),
WHEREAS, under section 119.071 of the Florida Statutes, "home addresses" includes the physical address, mailing address, street address, parcel identification number, plot identification number, legal property description, neighborhood name and lot number, GPS coordinates, and any other descriptive property information that may reveal the home address,
WHEREAS, the CDD shall only request Exempt Information when there is a statutory or official need for the Exempt Information,
WHEREAS, the CDD shall take full responsibility for protecting all Exempt Information provided pursuant to this agreement in accordance with Florida law,

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants herein provided, the CDD and the Property Appraiser agree as follows:

	The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein.


	Before the CDD requests any Exempt Information from the Property Appraiser, the CDD shall establish sufficient safeguards to ensure that Exempt Information will not be disclosed, whether intentionally or inadvertently, by the CDD or any of its agents or employees, except as authorized by Florida law.


	The CDD shall only use Exempt Information to fulfill the official administration, duties, and responsibilities of the CDD and such Exempt Information may not be disclosed or shared for any other purpose other than as prescribed by Florida law.
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	When in receipt of Exempt Information from the Property Appraiser, the CDD acknowledges that its employees, successors, and authorized agents are subject to the same requirements exempting such records from public disclosure and the same penalties for violation of those requirements as the Property Appraiser. The CDD accepts full responsibility for the actions of its employees, successors, and authorized agents with regards to the Exempt Information, unless otherwise provided by Florida law and subject to the limitations of section 768.28, Florida Statutes, to the extent applicable.


	To the extent allowed by, and subject to the limitations of, section 768.28 of the Florida Statutes, if applicable, the CDD does hereby agree to indemnify and hold the Property Appraiser, its officials, employees, and instrumentalities, harmless from any and all liability for any damage, injury, or claim that may arise by virtue of the Property Appraiser's disclosure of the Exempt Information to the CDD, or the exercise of any rights, obligations or actions under this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the CDD's failure to maintain the Exempt Information in accordance with Florida law.


	The undersigned further agrees that these conditions shall be deemed a continuing obligation between the CDD and the Property Appraiser and shall remain in full force and effect and be binding on the CDD, and any permitted successors or assigns.


	In the event that the CDD requests any third party to assume any of its responsibilities as it relates to the Exempt Information or this Agreement, the CDD must require the third party to agree in writing that it is subject to, and must comply with, all terms of this Agreement and that it must protect the Exempt Information from disclosure. Such agreement by the third party must be signed before the CDD allows the third party to access any Exempt Information. The CDD acknowledges that such assumption by a third party shall not relieve the CDD from any obligations or responsibilities hereunder. Any failure by any third party shall not subject the Property Appraiser to any liability for any damage, injury, or claim that may arise. A failure of the CDD to comply with this section shall be a breach of this Agreement and therefore a termination of the Agreement without the notice requirement in section 9.


	Nothing in this Agreement, expressed or implied, is intended to: (a) confer upon any entity or person other than the parties and any permitted successors or assigns, any rights or remedies under or by reason of the Agreement as a third party beneficiary or otherwise except as specifically provided in this Agreement; or (b) authorize anyone not a party to this Agreement to maintain an action pursuant to or based upon this Agreement. Additionally, nothing herein shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of any rights under section 768.28 of the Florida Statutes, or as a waiver of the Property Appraiser's sovereign rights.


	Either party to this Agreement may terminate the Agreement with seven (7) days' written notice to the other party. The CDD's obligation to protect the Exempt Information from disclosure shall remain in full force and effect following the termination of the Agreement.


	The language agreed to herein expresses the mutual intent and agreement of the Property Appraiser and the CDD, and shall not, as a matter of judicial construction, be construed more severely against one of the parties from the other.
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	Any notices to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given if sent by hand delivery, recognized overnight courier (e.g., Federal Express), or by written certified U.S. main, with return receipt requested, addressed to the party for whom it is intended, at the place specified. The method of delivery shall be consistent among all of the persons listed herein. For the present, the CDD and Property Appraiser designate the following as the respective places for notice purposes:


Community Development District:	Coral Keys Homes CDD
5385 N. Nob Hill Road Sunrise, FL 33351

With a Copy to:





Property Appraiser:




With a Copy to:
 District Counsel
Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 515 East Las Olas Blvd., Sixth Floor
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301 Attn: Dennis E. Lyles, Esq.

Miami-Dade County
Office of the Property Appraiser
111 Northwest First Street, Suite 710
Miami, Florida 33128

Miami-Dade County Attorney's Office 111 Northwest First Street, Suite 2810
Miami, Florida 33128

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Coral Keys Homes Community Development District has caused this instrument to be executed by its respective officials thereunto duly authorized, this the day and year above written.

CORAL KEYS HOMES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ATTEST:

By:
 	
By:
 	

Secretary/Assistant Secretary

Chairperson

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM	 	
AND CORRECTNESS:

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY PROPERTY APPRAISER

ATTEST:

By: Property Appraiser/ Designee	Date
 CDD Attorney


Sam11.le Coral Keys Homes
Community Development District Landowners Meeting Agenda


Tuesday November 24, 2020 11:15a.m.
 Crexent Business Center Third Floor Conference Room
6625 Miami Lakes Drive Miami Lakes, Florida


	Call to Order



	Election of a Chairman for the Purpose of Conducting the Landowners Meeting



	Determination of Number of Voting Units Represented



	Nominations for the Position of Supervisors



	Casting of Ballots



	Tabulation of Ballots and Announcement of Results



	Adjournment

Sam12,le





OFFICIAL BALLOT CORAL KEYS HOMES
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT MIAMI, FLORIDA
LANDOWNERS MEETING TUESDAY NOVEMBER 24, 2020

For Interval Elections (3 Supervisors): The two candidates receiving the most votes will each receive a four (4) year term; the recipient of the next highest vote count will receive a two (2) year term.


The undersigned certifies that they are the fee simple owner or proxy holder of the landowner (proxy form attached) of the land described in the attachment hereto, which land lies within the boundaries of the Coral Keys Homes Community Development District;

***LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY ATTACHED***

and cast their vote(s) for the following:


NAME OF CANDIDATE	NUMBER OF VOTES
1. 	(Seat 1)	 	
2.	(Seat 2)	 	
3. 	(Seat 3)	 	


file_21.png

Dated: ----
 Signed: 	_ Name:  		
Samll_/e


L ANDOWN ER PROXY
LANDOWNERS MEETING - NOVEMBER 24, 2020 CORAL KEYS HOMES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMEN T DISTRICT
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned, the fee simple owner of the lands described herein, hereby constitutes and appoints:


Proxy Holder

for and on behalf of the undersigned, to vote as. proxy at the meeting of the landowners of the Coral Keys Homes Community Development District to be held at 11:15 a.m. on November 24, 2020 at the Crexent Business Center Third Floor Conference Room at 6625 Miami Lakes Drive, Miami Lakes, Florida 33014, and at any continuances or adjournments thereof, according to the number of acres of unplatted land and/or platted lots owned by the undersigned landowner which the undersigned would be entitled to vote if then personally present, upon any question, proposition, or resolution or any other matter or thing which may be considered at said meeting including, but not limited to, the election of members of the Board of Supervisors. Said Proxy Holder may vote in accordance with their discretion on all matters not known or determined at the time of solicitation of this proxy, which may legally be considered at said meeting.

Any proxy heretofore given by the undersigned for said meeting is hereby revoked. This proxy is to continue in full force and effect from the date hereof until the conclusion of the annual meeting and any adjournment or adjournments thereof, but may be revoked at any time by written notice of such revocation presented at the annual meeting prior to the Proxy Holder exercising the voting rights conferred herein.



Print or type name of Landowner	Date (or, if applicable, authorized representative of Landowner)


Signature of Landowner, or Landowner Representative

Parcel Description	Acreage	Authorized Votes*





(must be street address, tax parcel ID number, or Legal description attached)

Total Number of Authorized Votes:
	Pursuant to section 190.006(2)(b), Florida Statutes (2007), a fraction of an acre is treated as one (1) acre entitling the landowner to one vote with respect thereto.


Please note that a particular real property is entitled to only one vote for each eligible acre of lands or fraction thereof; two (2) or more persons who own real property in common that is one acre or less are together entitled to only one vote for that real property. If the fee simple landowner is not an individual, and is instead a corporation, limited liability company, limited partnership or other entity, evidence that the individual signing on behalf of the entity has the authority to do so should be attached hereto. (e.g., bylaws, corporate resolution, etc.). If more than one parcel, each must be listed or described.


INSTRUCTIONS RELATING TO LANDOWNERS MEETING
OF THE CORAL KEYS HOMES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT FOR THE ELECTION OF SUPERVISORS

DATE OF LANDOWNERS MEETING: NOVEMBER 24, 2020 TIME: 11:15 A.M.
LOCATION: CREXENT BUSINESS CENTER THIRD FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM, 6625 MIAMI LAKES DRIVE, MIAMI LAKES, FLORIDA 33014
Pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, after a Community Development District ("District") has been established and the landowners have held their initial election, there shall be a subsequent landowners' meeting for the purpose of electing members of the Board of Supervisors every two years until the District qualifies to have its board members elected by the qualified electors of the district. The following instructions on how all landowners may participate in the election is intended to comply with Section 190.006(2)(b), Florida Statutes, as amended by Chapter 2004-353, Laws of Florida.

A landowner may vote in person at the Landowner's Meeting, or the landowner may nominate a proxy holder to vote at the meeting in place of the landowner. Whether in person or by proxy, each landowner shall be entitled to cast one vote per acre of land owned by him or her and located within the District, for each person that the landowner desires to elect to a position on the Board of Supervisors that is open for election for the upcoming term (three (3) seats on the Board will be up for election). A fraction of an acre shall be treated as one (1) acre, entitling the landowner to one vote with respect thereto. Please note that a particular real property is entitled to only one vote for each eligible acre of land or fraction thereof; therefore, two or more people who own real property in common, that is one acre or less, are together entitled to only one vote for that real property.

At the Landowners' Meeting, the first step is to elect a chair for the meeting, who may be any person present at the meeting. The landowners' shall also elect a secretary for the meeting who may be any person present at the meeting. The secretary shall be responsible for the minutes of the meeting. The chair shall conduct the nominations and the voting. If the chair is a landowner or proxy holder of a landowner, he or she may nominate candidates and make and second motions. Candidates must be nominated and then shall be elected by a vote of the landowners. Nominees may be elected only to a position on the Board of Supervisors that is open for election for the upcoming term. The two candidates receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected for a term of four (4) years, and the remaining candidate elected shall serve for a two (2) year term. The term of office for each successful candidate shall commence upon election. Thereafter, there shall be an election of supervisors for the District every two (2) years in November on a date established by the Board of Supervisors upon proper notice until the District qualifies to have its board members elected by the qualified electors of the District.

A proxy is available upon request. To be valid, each proxy must be signed by one of the legal owners of the property for which the vote is cast and must contain the typed or printed name of the individual who signed the proxy; the street address, legal description of the property or tax parcel identification number; and the number of authorized votes. If the proxy authorizes more than one vote, each property must be listed and the number of acres of each property must be included. The signature on a proxy does not need to be notarized.
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CERTIFICATION


STATE OF FLORIDA) COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE)



WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL, AT MIAMI, MIAMI-DADE. COUNTY, FLORIDA,
ON THIS 7th DAY OF MAY, 2020
I, Christina White, Supervisor of Elections of Miami-Dade County, Florida, do hereby certify that Coral Keys Homes, as described in the attached LEGAL DESCRIPTION, has 75 voters.
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Christina White
	Supervisor of Elections














Please submit a check for $90.00 to our office payable to "Miami-Dade County" for the cost of certifying the number of registered voters.


CORAL KEYS HOMES
Community Development District

Summary  of Check Register
May 26, 2020




Check Date
Check #'s
Total Amount

11/7/2019
345-348
$5,785.96

12/16/2019
349-352
$4,132.28

1/23/2020
353-355
$3,842.25

3/18/2020
356-357
$8,106.85

5/6/2020
358-360
$6,048.90








Total	$27,916.24
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CKEY --CORAL KEYS-- ACOOPER

AP300R	YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER
***   CHECK DATES 10/15/2019  - 05/14/2020 ***	CORAL KEYS HOMES - GENERAL
BANK A CORAL KEYS HOMES CDD
 RUN	5/14/20	PAGE	1
CHECK DATE
 VEND#
 
.....INVOICE.....
DATE	INVOICE
 
...EXPENSED TO... YRMO	DPT ACCT# SUB
 

SUBCLASS
 
VENDOR NAME
 
STATUS	AMOUNT	....CHECK.....
AMOUNT	#

11/07/19 00016	10/14/19 431359-1 201910 310-51300-48000
NOTICE OF MEETING DATES 10/31/19 432641-1 201910 310-51300-48000
NOTICE OF MEETING DATES 10/31/19 432713-1 201910  310-51300-48000
NOTICE OF MEETING DATES
 
55.55

667.78

*	544.86


11/07/19 00003
 

9/30/19 158625
 ALM MEDIA LLC

201909 310-51300-31500	2;137.50
 1,268.19 000345


- - - - - - - - - - - - -
 SEP 19 - ATTORNEY FEES
 
BILLING, COCHRAN, LYLES, MAURO &	2,137.50 000346
11/07/19 00005	10/01/19 74274
SPECIAL
 201910 310-51300-54000
DISTRICT FEE FY20
 175.00


- - - - - - - -
- - - -
-
11/07/19 00001
11/01/19




11/01/19



11/01/19



11/01/19



11/01/19


12/16/19

00016

11/08/19



12/03/19


12/16/19

00003

10/31/19


171
NOV 19
171
NOV 19
171
NOV 19
171
NOV 19
171
NOV 19
 DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY

201911 310-51300-34000
	MGMT FEES

201911 310-51300-35100	*
	COMPUTER TIME

201911 310-51300-35101	*
	WEBSITE ADMIN

201911 310-51300-42000
	POSTAGE

201911 310-51300-42500
	COPIES

 

2,060.00

41.67

83.33

.92

19.35
 175.00 000347
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES -

436684-1 201911 310-51300-48000
NOTICE OF MEETING DATES
441459-1 201912 310-51300-48000
NOTICE OF MEETING DATES
 

57.65

98.95
 2,205.27 000348
- - - - -
ALM MEDIA LLC

159198	201910 310-51300-31500	*
OCT 19 - ATTORNEY FEES
 156.60 000349
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
1,170.00
- - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/16/19 00001	12/01/19 172
DEC 12/01/19 172
DEC 12/01/19 172
DEC 12/01/19 172
DEC
 BILLING, COCHRAN, LYLES, MAURO &

201912 310-51300-34000
19 - MGMT FEES
201912 310-51300-35100
19 - COMPUTER TIME
201912 310-51300-35101
19 - WEBSITE ADMIN
201912 310-51300-51000
19 - OFFICE SUPPLIES
 1,170.00 000350
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
2,060.00

*	41.67
83.33

15.00

CKEY --CORAL KEYS-- ACOOPER

AP300R	YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER
***   CHECK DATES 10/15/2019 -  05/14/2020 ***	CORAL KEYS HOMES - GENERAL
BANK A CORAL KEYS HOMES COD
 RUN	5/14/20	PAGE	2
CHECK DATE
 VEND#
 
.....INVOICE.....
DATE	INVOICE
 
...EXPENSED TO... YRMO	DPT ACCT# SUB
 

SUBCLASS
 
VENDOR NAME
 
STATUS	AMOUNT	....CHECK.....
AMOUNT	#

12/01/19 172
 
201912 310-51300-42000
 *	1. 3 8
DEC 19 - POSTAGE
12/01/19 172	201912 310-51300-42500
DEC 19 - COPIES/PRINTS
 *	104.30
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES -

12/16/19
00009
11/04/19

1/23/20

00008

12/09/19

18772	201911 310-51300-32200
AUDIT FYE 9/30/2019
 
*	500.00
 2,305.68 000351


5343
 GRAU & ASSOCIATES

201911 310-51300-31100	*	425.00
 500.00 000352
NOV 19 - ENGINEERING FEES
 
ALVAREZ ENGINEERS, INC.
 
425.00 000353

1/23/20 00003	11/30/19 159783
 
201911 310-51300-31500
 
1,170.00

- - - - - - - - - - - - -
 NOV 19 - ATTORNEY FEES
 
BILLING, COCHRAN, LYLES, MAURO &	1,170.00 000354
173
JAN

20
202001 310-51300-34000
- MGMT FEES




2,060.00

173

202001 310-51300-35100




41.67


JAN
20
- COMPUTER TIME







173

202001 310-51300-35101




83.33


JAN
20
- WEBSITE ADMIN







173

202001 310-51300-42000



*
1.50


JAN
20
- POSTAGE







173

202001 310-51300-42500




60.75


JAN
20
- COPIES









GOVERNMENTAL
MANAGEMENT
SERVICES
-


2,247.25
000355

1/23/20
00001
1/01/20


1/01/20


1/01/20


1/01/20


1/01/20

3/18/20

00003

12/31/19


1/31/20


*
382.50



COCHRAN,


LYLES,


MAURO



&
*
1,102.50


1,485.00


000356

*
2,060.00



*
41.67




83.33




.60




2,060.00



160285	201912 310-51300-31500
DEC 19 - ATTORNEY FEES
160796	202001 310-51300-31500
JAN 20 - ATTORNEY FEES


174
FEB
202002 310-51300-34000
20 - MANAGEMENT FEES
174
202002 310-51300-35100
FEB
20 - COMPUTER TIME
174
202002 310-51300-35101
FEB
20 = WEBSITE ADM
174
202002 310-51300-42500
FEB
20 - COPIES
175
202003 310-51300-34000
MAR
20 - MANAGEMENT FEES

3/18/20 00001
 

2/01/20

2/01/20

2/01/20

2/01/20

3/01/20
 BILLING,


AP300R	YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER
***   CHECK DATES 10/15/2019  - 05/14/2020 ***	CORAL KEYS HOMES - GENERAL
BANK A CORAL KEYS HOMES CDD
 RUN	5/14/20	PAGE	3

CHECK	VEND#	.....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...	VENDOR NAME	STATUS	AMOUNT	....CHECK.....
DATE	DATE	INVOICE	YRMO	DPT ACCT# SUB	SUBCLASS	AMOUNT	#
3/01/20 175	202003 310-51300-35100	*	41.67
MAR 20 - COMPUTER TIME
3/01/20 175	202003 310-51300-35101	*	83.33
MAR 20 - WEBSITE ADM
3/01/20 175	202003 310-51300-42000	*	1. 00
MAR 20 - POSTAGE
3/01/20 175	202003 310-51300-42500	*	3.00
MAR 20 - COPIES
GOVERNMENTAL  MANAGEMENT SERVICES -	4,374.60 000357
-   -     -    -     -     -    -     -     -     -     -  -    -	-     -     -     -     -    -   -    -   - -  -	-   -     -     -     -     -     -     -     - -    -	- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
5/06/20 00003	2/29/20 161189	202002 310-51300-31500	*	632.50
FEB 20 - ATTORNEY FEES
3/31/20 161907	202003 310-51300-31500	*	1,192.50
MAR 20 - ATTORNEY FEES


- - - - - - - -
5/06/20 00001
- - - - -
4/01/20


4/01/20

4/01/20

4/01/20

4/01/20

5/01/20

5/01/20

5/01/20

5/01/20

176
 BILLING, COCHRAN, LYLES, MAURO &	1,825.00 000358
-   -     -     -     -    -    -	-     -    -  -	-   -   -   -   -   -   -     -   -    -	- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
- 202004 310-51300-34000	*	2,060.00
APR 20	MGMT FEES
176	202004 310-51300-35100	*	41.67
APR 20 - COMPUTER TIME
176	202004 310-51300-35101	*	83.33
APR 20 - WEBSITE ADMIN
176	202004 310-51300-42000	*	.50
APR 20 - POSTAGE
176	202004 310-51300-42500	*	.15
177	202005 310-51300-34000
*
2,060.00
177	202005 310-51300-35100
*
41.67
177	202005 310-51300-35101
*
83.33
177	202005 310-51300-42000
*
.50

- - .- - - - - -
5/06/20 00009

- - - - -
4/02/20
MAY 20 -
- -
19333
POSTAGE
GOVERNMENTAL  MANAGEMENT SERVICES
-     -     -     -     -   -   -   -   -   -   - -  -	-   -   -   -     -   -     -     -     -   -
202004 310-51300-32200
-
-	- - - - - - - - - -
*	2,100.00
4,371.15
-   -   -   -  -

APR 20 - COPIES
MAY 20 - MGMT FEES
MAY 20 - COMPUTER TIME MAY 20 - WEBSITE ADMIN
 














000359

AUDIT FYE 09/30/2019
GRAU &   ASSOCIATES	2,100.00 000360
-   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   - -  -	-     -     -     -    -    -	-   -   -   -   -  -  -	- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A TOTAL FOR REGISTER
 
27,916.24

27,916.24

CKEY --CORAL KEYS-- ACOOPER
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Coral Keys Homes
Community Development District Tax Collections
Fiscal Year Ending September  30, 2019


$	53,473.68
Gross


Total


Date
Collections
Gross Tax
Commissions
Discounts/
Interest
Net Amount
Received
Period
Received

Penalties

Received

11/15/2019

11/1/19 - 11/8/19	$

53,473.68

$	513.35

$	2,138.95

$

$ 50,821.38
1/23/2020
10/1/19 - 12/31/19	.$

$
$
$	37.33
$	37.33
$






$






$






$






$
TOTALS
$
53,473.68
$	513.35
$	2,138.95
$	37.33
$ 50,858.71


 Percentage Collected	100% 

 Remaining Collections	$	
CORAL KEYS HOMES


COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
April 30, 2020




General


 	Fund	
ASSETS:


CASH

$68,695
TOTAl ASSETS
$68,695



LIABILITIES:


ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

$21,777

FUND BALANCES: UNASSIGNED


$46,918
TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY

& OTHER CREDITS
$68,695


























Page 1
CORAL KEYS HOMES


Community Development District General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance For the Period Ended April 30, 2020


Adopted
Budget
Prorated
Budget
Actual

Description
FV2020
Thru 04/30/20
Thru 04/30/20
Variance

Revenues:




Maintenance Assessments
$50,800
$50,800
$50,859
$59
Total Revenues
$50,800
$50,800
$50,859
$59

Expenditures:




Administrative:




Engineering Fees
$2,000
$1,167
$425
$742
Attorney Fees
$7,000
$4,083
$5,650
($1,567)
Annual Audit
$5,000
$2,600
$2,600
$0
Management Fees
$24,720
$14,420
$14,420
$0
Computer Time
$500
$292
$292
($0)
Website Compliance
$1,000
$583
$583
$0
Postage
$100
$58
$8
$51
Printing & Binding
$341
$199
$253
($54)
Insurance
$6,325
$6,325
$5,894
$431
Legal Advertising
$900
$525
$1,984
($1,459)
Contingencies
$675
$394
$351
$43
Dues, Licenses, Subscriptions
$175
$175
$175
$0
Operating Reserves
$2,064
$1,204
$0
$1,204



$0

Total Administrative Expenditures
$50,800
$32,025
$32,634
($609)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues




over (under) expenditures
$0
$18,775
$18,224
$668

Fund Balance - Beginning

$0


$28,694

Fund Balance - Ending
$0

$46,918
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